FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WITH REPORT ON AUDIT BY INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

JUNE 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

June 30, 2015

	Page <u>Number</u>
Independent Auditors' Report	1 - 2
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)	3 - 6
Basic Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	7
Statement of Activities	8
Balance Sheet - Governmental Fund	9
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Net Position	10
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund	11
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of the Government Fund to the Statement of Activities	12
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	13 - 25

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors Public Cable Television Authority Fountain Valley, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of the Public Cable Television Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Authority's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and major fund of the Authority, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Report on Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, identified as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

White Nelson Diehl Chans UP

Irvine, California May 5, 2016

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2015

Our discussion and analysis of the Public Cable Television Authority's financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 provides year ending results based on the government-wide statements, an analysis of the Authority's overall financial position and results of operations and a discussion of significant changes that occurred in funds. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- The Authority's government-wide activity net position increased by \$331,696, from \$2,738,584 in 2014 to \$3,070,280 in 2015.
- During the year, the Authority's total revenues were \$5,647,558 and total expenditures were \$5,315,862 resulting in an increase in net position of \$331,696.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activity report information about the Authority as a whole and about its activities in a way to answer the question: "Is the Authority as a whole better off as a result of the year's activities?"

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position presents information of the Authority's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the four reported as net position. In the Statement of Activity, all of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Fund Financial Statements:

All of the Authority's basic activities are reported in a governmental fund, which has a focus on how money flows in and out and the balance left at year-end that is available for spending. This fund is reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Authority's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Authority's program. The differences of results in the governmental fund financial statements to those in the government-wide financial statements are explained in the reconciliation statements and notes to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

Government-wide Financial Analysis:

The operations of the Authority are financed entirely by franchise fees and PEG fees paid by the cable and video system operators. Fees collected are used to pay off operating expenses for the current year while balances remaining are distributed to all participating member cities or restricted for specific purposes. Accordingly, the governmental fund balance of the Authority represents undistributed or restricted fund balance as of end of the year.

Net Position:

The Authority's total assets exceeded total liabilities by \$3,070,280 which is an increase of \$331,696 from the prior year. There was an increase in total assets of \$305,400 principally brought about by the excess of revenues over expenses. The franchise fees payable represent unpaid distribution to the member cities as of June 30, 2015.

	Fiscal Year 2015	Fiscal Year 2014	Dollar Change	Total Percent Change
Assets:			-	-
Cash and investments	\$ 2,161,748	\$ 1,844,303	\$ 317,445	17.21 %
Franchise fees receivable	1,185,360	1,188,747	(3,387)	(0.28)
PEG support fees receivable	237,072	237,749	(677)	(0.28)
Other assets	22,051	16,368	5,683	34.72
Capital assets	462,881	476,545	(13,664)	(2.87)
Total Assets	4,069,112	3,763,712	305,400	8.11
Liabilities:				
Franchise fees payable	982,892	1,010,911	(28,019)	(2.77)
Other liabilities	15,940	14,217	1,723	12.12
Total Liabilities	998,832	1,025,128	(26,296)	(2.57)
Net Position:				
Net investment in capital assets	462,881	476,545	(13,664)	(2.87)
Restricted	2,289,126	1,953,054	336,072	17.21
Unrestricted	318,273	308,985	9,288	3.01
Total Net Position	<u>\$ 3,070,280</u>	<u>\$ 2,738,584</u>	<u>\$ 331,696</u>	12.11

TABLE 1Statements of Net Position

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

Net Position (Continued):

The unrestricted net position available for distribution to member cities as of June 30, 2015 amounted to \$318,273.

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:

The revenues increased during the year mainly due to the number of basic cable subscribers increasing (Time Warner Cable, AT&T, and Verizon California, Inc.). Consequently, the operating costs, which include PEG related expenditures, increased by \$84,047, due to proper management of the budget.

TABLE 2 Statements of Activities

	 Fiscal Year 2015		Fiscal Year 2014	 Dollar Change	Total Percent Change
Revenues:					
Franchise fees	\$ 4,699,568	\$	4,602,766	\$ 96,802	2.10 %
PEG support fees					
and rental income	942,913		920,553	22,360	2.43
Investment income	5,027		3,917	1,110	28.34
Other income	 50		356	 (306)	(85.96)
Total Revenues	 5,647,558		5,527,592	 119,966	2.17
Expenses:					
Cable franchise	4,695,357		4,593,521	101,836	2.22
Public, education and	, ,		, ,	,	
government programs	 620,505		638,294	 (17,789)	(2.79)
Total Expenses	 5,315,862		5,231,815	 84,047	1.61
Changes in net position	\$ 331,696	<u>\$</u>	295,777	\$ 35,919	12.14

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements:

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the Authority's capital assets follows:

		alance at e 30, 2015	_	alance at e 30, 2014		ncrease Decrease)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment, net	<u>\$</u>	462,881	<u>\$</u>	476,545	<u>\$</u>	(13,664)

The decrease in capital assets of \$13,664 was primarily the result of depreciation expense on the capital assets.

Additional information on the Authority's capital assets is presented in Note 4 of the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Authority's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Authority's Finance Department.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS:	
Cash and investments (Notes 2C and 3)	\$ 2,161,748
Franchise fees receivable	1,185,360
PEG support fees receivable	237,072
Interest receivable	1,466
Other receivable	1,667
Prepaid expenses and deposits	18,918
Capital assets (Note 4):	
Capital assets, being depreciated, net	462,881
TOTAL ASSETS	4,069,112
LIABILITIES:	
Accounts payable	9,738
Salaries and benefits payable	6,202
Franchise fees payable	982,892
TOTAL LIABILITIES	998,832
NET POSITION:	
Net investment in capital assets	462,881
Restricted	2,289,126
Unrestricted	318,273
TOTAL NET POSITION	\$ 3,070,280

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2015

					Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in
		I	Program Revenue	es	Net Position
		Charges	Operating	Capital	
		for	Grants and	Grants and	Governmental
Functions/Programs	Expenses	Services	Contributions	Contributions	Activities
Governmental activities:					
Cable franchise	\$ 4,695,357	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ (4,695,357)
Public, Education and					
Government programs	620,505	942,913			322,408
Total governmental activities	\$ 5,315,862	\$ 942,913	<u>\$ -</u>	<u>\$ </u>	(4,372,949)
	GENERAL REVENUE	S.			
	Franchise fees	5.			4,699,568
	Investment income				5,027
	Other income				50
	Total general reven	ues			4,704,645
	CHANGE IN NET	POSITION			331,696
	NET POSITION - BEG	INNING OF YE	EAR		2,738,584
	NET POSITION - END	OF YEAR			\$ 3,070,280

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2015

	General
	Fund
ASSETS	
Cash and investments (Notes 2C and 3)	\$ 2,161,748
Franchise fees receivable	1,185,360
PEG support fees receivable	237,072
Interest receivable	1,466
Other receivable	1,667
Prepaid expenses and deposits	18,918
repaid expenses and deposits	10,910
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 3,606,231
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	
LIABILITIES:	
Accounts payable	\$ 9,738
Salaries and benefits payable	6,202
Franchise fees payable	982,892
TOTAL LIABILITIES	998,832
FUND BALANCES (NOTE 2H):	
Nonspendable:	
Prepaid expenses and deposits	18,918
Restricted for:	
PEG channel facilities	2,289,126
Unassigned	299,355
	<u>_</u>
TOTAL FUND BALANCES	2,607,399
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	\$ 3,606,231

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

Fund balance for the governmental fund		\$ 2,607,399
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net I are different because:	Position	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Capital assets Accumulated depreciation	\$ 1,476,476 (1,013,595)	462,881
Net position of governmental activities		\$ 3,070,280

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2015

	General Fund
REVENUES:	
Franchise fees (Note 6)	\$ 4,699,568
PEG support fees (Note 7)	939,913
Investment income	5,027
PEG rental income	3,000
Other income	50
TOTAL REVENUES	5,647,558
EXPENDITURES:	
Distributions to members (Note 6)	4,486,462
Professional fees	14,624
Payroll	51,920
Mileage	1,544
Executive Director's salary	80,093
Director's fees	3,400
Seminars and conventions	3,867
Dues and subscriptions	2,952
Insurance	30,667
Supplies, postage and communication	2,317
Rent	6,000
Miscellaneous	11,511
PEG channel (Note 7)	606,841
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	5,302,198
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE	345,360
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR	2,262,039
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR	\$ 2,607,399

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2015

Net change in fund balance - total governmental fund		\$ 345,360
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:		
When capital assets owned by the Authority are purchased or constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental fund. However, in the Stateme of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Capital outlays Depreciation expense	119,547 (133,211)	
		 (13,664)
Change in net position of governmental activities		\$ 331,696

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015

1. DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY:

The Public Cable Television Authority (the Authority or PCTA) is a public entity created in 1971 pursuant to a joint powers agreement between the Cities of Fountain Valley, Westminster and Huntington Beach (member cities). In 1981, the City of Stanton was admitted as a member of the Authority. The Authority was created for the purpose of exercising the common powers of the member cities to regulate the Community Antenna Television System (CATV) within these cities.

In 2004, the joint powers agreement was amended to include the regulation of open video systems, or cable television system (collectively "cable systems") and any and all services, including non-cable services provided on or through said cable systems. The powers of the Authority include, but are not limited to, granting franchises, administering franchises, renewing franchises, administering channels allocated for city, school, public safety or community uses, conducting research, appearing before or communicating with administrative or legislative bodies, acquiring, constructing, financing, managing and operating a community antenna television system or cable television system and all other necessary and incidental powers with respect to cable system and the services provided on or through those systems.

With the passage of California Assembly Bill 2987, the Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act of 2006 (DIVCA) into law, new competitive video service providers such as Verizon and AT&T were able to provide video services in all PCTA communities. In addition, pursuant to this law, Time Warner Cable's franchise with the PCTA was automatically converted to a state franchise as of January 2, 2008. Although the state became the franchisor of all video service providers serving the PCTA member cities at this time, the PCTA maintained the authority for the enforcement of customer services requirements and other standards as well as maintained its regulatory responsibilities over PEG access channel support and operations.

The Authority is financially accountable to the member cities and is being governed by the Board of Directors appointed by the City Council of each member city.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting:

The basic financial statements of the Authority are composed of the following:

- Government-wide financial statements
- Fund financial statements
- Notes to the basic financial statements

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued):

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their statement of net position. Operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Program revenues include charges for services from Public, Education and Government programs fees. Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to present the net cost of each program. Franchise fees and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure.

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are generally included on their balance sheets. The reported fund balance is considered to be a measure of "available spendable resources". Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in fund balance. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued):

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they become measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.

Franchise fees, PEG fees and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period to the extent normally collected within the availability period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available where cash is received by the government.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that resources were expended, rather than as fund assets.

B. New Accounting Pronouncements:

Current Year Standards:

GASB 68 - "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27", required to be implemented in the current fiscal year did not impact the Authority.

GASB 69 - "Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations", required to be implemented in the current fiscal year did not impact the Authority.

GASB 71 - "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68", required to be implemented in the current fiscal year did not impact the Authority.

Pending Accounting Standards:

GASB has issued the following statements which may impact the Authority's financial reporting requirements in the future:

• GASB 72 - "*Fair Value Measurement and Application*", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

B. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued):

Pending Accounting Standards (Continued)

- GASB 73 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015 - except for those provisions that address employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68, which are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
- GASB 74 "Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans", effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
- GASB 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than *Pensions*", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017.
- GASB 76 "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015.
- GASB 77 "*Tax Abatement Disclosure*", effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.
- GASB 78 "Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans", effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.
- GASB 79 "*Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants*", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015 except for certain provisions on portfolio quality, custodial credit risk, and shadow pricing, which are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015.
- GASB 80 "Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.
- GASB 81 "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements", effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2016.
- GASB 82 "Pension Issues, an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73", effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

C. Investments:

For financial reporting purposes, investments are adjusted to their fair value whenever the difference between fair market value and the carrying amount is material.

D. Prepaid Costs:

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid costs in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

E. Capital Assets:

The Authority's policy is to capitalize assets with an initial individual cost of more than \$500 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. All assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of net position. The lives used for depreciation purposes of each asset class are:

Computer equipment	4 - 5 years
Broadcast equipment	7 years

F. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and the governmental fund balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred outflows of resources*, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The Authority does not have any applicable deferred outflows of resources.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and the governmental fund balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred inflows of resources*, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority does not have any applicable deferred inflows of resources.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

G. Net Position:

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories:

<u>Net investment in capital assets</u> - This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets. The Authority has no debt related to capital assets.

<u>Restricted net position</u> - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

<u>Unrestricted net position</u> - This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position".

Net Position Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.

It is the Authority's practice to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.

H. Fund Balances:

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the following categories:

<u>Nonspendable</u> - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Authority's nonspendable fund balance includes prepaid expenses and deposits totaling \$18,918.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

H. Fund Balances (Continued):

<u>Restricted</u> - This classification includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation. The Authority's restricted fund balance as of June 30, 2015 includes unspent PEG revenues in the amount of \$2,289,126. This amount is restricted exclusively for PEG channel facilities and operating costs per Assembly Bill 2987.

<u>Unassigned</u> - This category is for any balances that have no restrictions placed upon them.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, the Authority's policy is to apply restricted fund balance first.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed or unassigned fund balance classifications could be used, and all those funds are available, the Authority will spend in the order of the committed and unassigned.

I. Lease:

The Authority accounts for its leased office space under the operating method of accounting, thus, lease payments are expensed as incurred.

J. Budget:

The Authority adopts a budget for expenditures only. Revenues are not budgeted.

K. Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS:

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments at June 30, 2015 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:		
Cash and investments	<u>\$</u>	2,161,748

Cash and investments at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Cash - deposits	\$ 61,548
Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund	 2,100,200
Total Cash and Investments	\$ 2,161,748

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Authority by the California Government Code. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

		Maximum	Maximum
	Maximum	Percentage	Investment
Authorized Investment Type	Maturity	of Portfolio	in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds	5 years	None	None
United States Treasury Obligations	5 years	None	None
United States Government Sponsored Entities	5 years	None	None
Banker's Acceptances	180 days	40%	30%
Commercial Paper	270 days	25%	10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit	5 years	30%	None
Repurchase Agreements	1 year	None	None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements	92 days	20% of	None
		base value	
Medium-Term Notes	5 years	30%	None
Mutual Funds	N/A	20%	10%
Money Market Mutual Funds	N/A	20%	10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities	5 years	20%	None
County Pooled Investment Funds	N/A	None	None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)	N/A	None	\$50 million
N/A -Not Applicable			

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Authority manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing shorter term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. The Authority's investments in LAIF are available on demand.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Authority's investments in LAIF are not rated.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for *deposits* is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the Authority's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. The Authority's deposits with financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED):

Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund

The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the Authority's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Authority's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS:

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:

]	Balance at					I	Balance at
	J	<u>uly 1, 2014</u>		Additions	Deletions		Ju	ne 30, 2015
Capital assets, being depreciated:								
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	\$	1,356,929	\$	119,547	\$	-	\$	1,476,476
Less accumulated depreciation:								
Furniture, fixtures and equipment		(880,384)		(133,211)		-		(1,013,595)
Total capital assets								
				(1.5				
being depreciated, net		476,545		(13,664)		-		462,881
Total capital accests not	¢	176 515	¢	(12 664)	¢		¢	462,881
Total capital assets, net	Ф	476,545	\$	(13,664)	J	-	٩_	402,001

Depreciation expense of \$133,211 was allocated to the Public, Education and Government program.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

5. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT:

In August 1976, the Authority granted a franchise to Dickinson Communications, Ltd. On October 2, 1979, the franchise was assigned to Dickinson Pacific Cablesystems, a partnership (Grantee). The franchise provided for the construction and operation of a Community Antenna Television System (CATV) within the Cities of Fountain Valley, Westminster, Huntington Beach, and Stanton, financed entirely by the Grantee through use of its own funds or other private capital.

The original terms of the franchise gave the member cities, or their nominees, the option to purchase the CATV system upon expiration of the franchise term. Alternatively, the member cities could acquire the system by extending the franchise of the Grantee to operate the system for an additional 5 years, at the termination of which Grantee would convey title in the system to the member cities or their nominees. The original term of the franchise was for 15 years to 1994. This was subsequently extended to 1999.

In February of 1989, the Board approved the transfer of the franchise to KBL Cable, Inc., as well as an additional five year extension of the franchise to the year 2004. The Board also approved and the member cities accepted a settlement agreement of ten million dollars, which deleted from the original agreement their rights to purchase the CATV system at the end of the franchise term or to acquire the system at the end of the franchise extension. The Authority distributed the ten million dollars to its participating members in March, 1989.

In February, 1996, Time Warner, Inc. completed its purchase of KBL Cable, Inc. The terms of the Authority's franchise agreement were not changed.

In August 2000, the Authority approved the transfer of control of the franchise granted to Time Warner Inc. to AOL Time Warner, Inc. (AOL).

In August 2002, AOL/Time Warner sought the Authority's consent to the transfer of the franchise, from AOL to Time Warner Cable Inc. (TWC). The Authority approved the transfer in March 2003. The terms of the Authority's franchise agreement were not changed.

The franchise agreement expired on September 30, 2004. However, the Authority continued to receive franchise fees equal to 5% of gross revenues under the terms of the expired franchise agreement until January 1, 2009, when the provisions of AB 2987 took effect for existing cable television franchisees.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

5. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (CONTINUED):

In January 2007, pursuant to AB 2987, the Authority became eligible to receive franchise fees from other video service providers, including Time Warner Cable, Inc. (collectively, the "cable system operators"). In addition to a franchise fee of 5% of gross revenue, new "PEG" (Public, Educational, and Government) facilities support fee, which is effective January 1, 2009 for existing cable system operators and effective immediately for any new cable system operators. AB 2987 provides that the cable system operators shall pay to the Authority a PEG support fee of 1% of the cable system operators' gross revenues per year from cable television operations within the franchised cities.

6. FRANCHISE FEES:

Under the provisions of the expired franchise agreement, the existing cable system operator, Time Warner Cable, Inc., was required to pay to the Authority the greater of 5% of its gross revenues per year from cable television operations within the franchised cities or \$85,000 per year, payable semiannually in July and January of each year for the preceding six months. This agreement was no longer effective beginning January 1, 2009, when AB 2987 became effective for existing cable system operators. Under the terms of AB 2987, cable system operators shall pay to the Authority 5% of the cable system operators' gross revenues per year from cable system operations within the franchised cities. For new cable system operators, AB 2987 requirements were effective beginning January 1, 2007. The cable system operators voluntarily made quarterly payments in fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 totaling \$4,699,568.

The Authority uses the franchise fee revenue to pay for the operating expenses for the current year. Any balances remaining are distributed to the participating member cities. During the current year, the participating members total franchise fees (net of expenses) amounted to \$4,486,462. Each member's distributable share was as follows:

Huntington Beach	\$ 3,053,756
Westminster	639,539
Fountain Valley	556,845
Stanton	236,322
Total	<u>\$ 4,486,462</u>

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2015

7. PUBLIC, EDUCATION AND GOVERNMENT (PEG) SUPPORT FEES:

Under DIVCA, local entities may require video service providers to provide PEG support fees up to 1% of gross revenues. PCTA has required the video service providers serving its communities to pay to the Authority 1% of the cable system operators' gross revenues per year. As a preexisting cable television franchisee, Time Warner was exempt from paying PEG support fees until January 2008, when Time Warner was transferred to a state franchise. All other video service providers were required to pay PEG support fees under their state franchises beginning as early as January 2007.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the PEG support fees amounted to \$939,913.

The Authority uses the PEG support fees to pay for the costs associated with the PEG access channel. During the current year, the Authority had the following PEG channel-related expenditures, which were paid for through PEG support fees:

Director fees	\$	3,400
Rent		11,234
Insurance		4,662
Repairs and maintenance		2,446
Professional fees		47,206
Mileage		2,642
Telephone		1,839
Seminars and conventions		2,547
Dues and subscriptions		682
Supplies		908
Truck expense		1,264
Miscellaneous		1,653
Video production and streaming equipment		169,779
Equipment video production support		356,579
Total	<u>\$</u>	606,841

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In preparing these financial statements, the Authority has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through May 5, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.